MEMORIAL-HEIGHTS REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

JOINT MEETING OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS

FEBRUARY 27, 2020

REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER FIVE, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS



MEMORIAL-HEIGHTS REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY/TIRZ NO. 5
MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2020

Table of Contents

Page No.

Agenda 1-2
Minutes MHRA December 12, 2019 3-7
Minutes TIRZ No. 5 December 12, 2019 8-9
President Report

Resolution Authorizing Amended Invoice and Payment Procedures - Redline Changes 10-14

Resolution Authorizing Amended Invoice and Payment Procedures 14-21

Projects Workshop Meeting Notes 22
Projects & Engineering 23

J|C Update/Rate Schedule 24-25

J|C Work Authorization No. 1, Amendment No. 8 25-28
Financial Matters

Financial Statements 29-38

Tax Increment Report 39



NOTICE OF JOINT MEETING
AT UNITED WAY BUILDING, 50 WAUGH DRIVE, HOUSTON, TEXAS 77007
MEMORIAL-HEIGHTS REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
AND
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER FIVE, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS

TO: THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE MEMORIAL-HEIGHTS REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER FIVE, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS, AND TO ALL OTHER
INTERESTED PERSONS:

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Directors of the Memorial-Heights Redevelopment Authority (the
“Authority”) will hold a joint meeting with the Board of Directors of the Reinvestment Zone Number Five, City of
Houston, Texas, (the “Zone”) on THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 2020, at 10:00 A.M., at the UNITED WAY
BUILDING, 50 WAUGH DRIVE, HOUSTON, TEXAS 77007, open to the public, to consider, discuss, and adopt
such orders, resolutions, or motions, and take other direct or indirect actions as may be necessaty, convenient, or
desirable with respect to the following matters:

1. Minutes of previous meetings:
a. Approve Authority minutes of December 12, 2019; 3-7
b. Approve Zone minutes of December 12, 2019; 8-9
2. Receive comments and questions from the public;
% Chair Report (Authority only),
4, President Report (Authority only):
a. Adopt Resolution Authorizing Amended Invoice Administration and Payment Procedures; 10-21
b. Review projects workshop and potential projects, and discuss CIP approval process; 22
5. Projects and Engineering (Authority only):
a. Receive Projects Committee Report: 23-25
i) Approve J|C Work Authorization No. 1, Amendment No. 8 [general services];  26-28
b. Houston Avenue/White Oak Drive Intersection [CIP Project T-0520]:
i) Update on construction matters [RAC Industries, LLC];
c. Little Thicket [CIP Project T-0521]:
i) Update on construction matters [Mills Equipment, LLC];
d. Shepherd/Durham and Selected Cross Streets Reconstruction [CIP Project T-
0523A]:
i) Update on project development;
e. Heights Boulevard Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety Improvements [CIP Project T-0527]:
i) Update on project development;
f. North Canal Project [CIP Project T-0525]:
i) Update on project development;
g. Approve related pay estimates or change orders, or other design, construction, or
management contract administration items, and authorize other appropriate action;
6. Financial matters (Authority only):
a. Receive Finance Committee Report;
b. Receive Financial Report Summary, including account and fund activity statements; 29-38
c. Authorize payment of invoices;
d. Receive Tax Increment Report [Equi-Tax, Inc.]; 39
e. Authorize preparation of budget for fiscal year ending June 30, 2021;
f. Authorize other appropriate action;
7. Attorney Report;
8. Executive Session (Authority only, the Zone will recess for duration of closed session):
a. Convene executive session for attorney consultation on authorized matters pursuant

to Open Meetings Act, § 551.071, Government Code; deliberations regarding purchase,
exchange, lease, or value of real property pursuant to Open Meetings Act, §551.072,
Government Code; and/or deliberations regarding economic development negotiations
pursuant to Open Meetings Act, § 551.087, Government Code;

b. Reconvene public session and authorize appropriate action regarding executive session
discussion;



9. Consider, confirm, or ratify actions of the Authority, as necessary (Zone only);

10. Adjourn.

SKLaw, Attorneys for the Authority and the Zone




MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING
OF
MEMORIAL-HEIGHTS REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

DECEMBER 12, 2019
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Memorial-Heights Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”),

convened in regular session, open to the public, at 50 Waugh Drive, Houston, Texas 77007, on the 12" day of
December, 2019, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of the Board, to-wit:

Ann Lents Chair
Alejandro Colom Vice Chair
Janice Hale-Harris Secretary
Bryan Brown Director
Christopher David Manriquez  Director
Dr. Robert Stein Director
Marvin Pierre Director

and all of said persons were present, except Director Colom, thus constituting a quorum.

Also present at the meeting were Sherry Weesner of SMW Principle Solutions, Inc., President of the
Authority; Erin Williford and Kristen Hennings of Jones|Carter (“J|C”); Jim Webb and Monisha Khurana of The
Goodman Corporation (“TGC”); Cassandra Robinson-Bacon of The Morton Accounting Services (“TMAS”); Pat
Rutledge from Friends of Woodland Park (“FWP”); Emily Guyre of Houston Heights Association; Mario Castillo
on behalf of Bill Baldwin, an area realtor; Letha Allen; Linda Trevino of METRO; and Laura C. Davis and Susan
Demiany of Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker Kahn LLP (“SKLaw").

DETERMINE QUORUM; CALL TO ORDER

Chair Lents noted that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order.

APPROVE MINUTES

The Board considered approving the minutes of the October 24, 2019, meeting. Upon motion by
Director Brown, seconded by Secretary Stein, and after full discussion, the Board unanimously voted to approve
the minutes of the October 24, 2019, meeting as presented.

RECEIVE COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

The next item on the agenda was to receive comments and questions from the public. There were no
comments or questions from the public.

CHAIR REPORT

Chair Lents announced the award to the Authority of the $25M Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage
Development (“BUILD”) Program grant for the reconstruction of the first phase of Shepherd Drive and Durham
Drive, and commended the efforts of everyone involved in the application process.

PRESIDENT REPORT

Receive quarterly GID update

Ms. Weesner reviewed with the Board the update from GID, noting that GID has pulled permits for Block
B site and that foundation work and excavation work has begun.

MHRA/minutes 12-12-19



Receive gquarterly Hanover update

Ms. Weesner reviewed with the Board the update from Hanover, noting that demolition is ongoing,
although slightly behind the schedule originally presented. She further advised that Jones|Carter received
drawings of intersection underground utilities.

Ms. Weesner reported on discussion with GID and Hanover about signage displaying the Authority’s
participation in the infrastructure improvements.

PROJECTS AND ENGINEERING

Receive Projects Committee Report

Director Brown updated the Board on Authority projects. He thanked all involved in the Authority’s
award of the BUILD program grant. He advised design of the Shepherd and Durham reconstruction project will
now begin. He further advised that the Authority continues to await finalization of the CNP work so that the
Houston Avenue/White Oak Drive intersection project may be closed out, and that a pre-construction meeting
with the contractor on the Little Thicket project will be held the following week.

Houston Avenue/White Oak Drive Intersection

Update on construction matters

Ms. Hennings updated the Board on construction matters for the Houston Avenue/White Oak Drive
Intersection [CIP Project T-0520] [RAC Industries, LLC (“RAC")]. She advised the project is substantially
complete, noting that permanent power to the signals is the only remaining item to be completed. She presented
to the Board Pay Estimate No. 11 in the amount of $1,145,903.00, and recommended approval. Director Brown
advised he has reviewed the Pay Estimate, and concurs with Ms. Hennings’ recommendation. Upon motion by
Director Brown, seconded by Director Stein, and after full discussion, the Board voted unanimously to approve
Pay Estimate No. 11 to RAC.

Approve J|C Work Authorization No. 2, Amendment No. 6

Ms. Williford reviewed with the Board the J|C Work Authorization No. 2, Amendment No. 6, which
includes additional services in connection with the project. Upon motion by Director Stein, seconded by Director
Hale-Harris, and after full discussion, the Board voted unanimously to approve J|C Work Authorization No. 2,
Amendment No. 6.

Little Thicket

Update on construction matters

Ms. Hennings updated the Board on construction matters for the Little Thicket [CIP Project T-0521]
[Mills Equipment, LLC]. She advised a preconstruction meeting is scheduled for Monday.

Shepherd and Durham Reconstruction

Update on project development

Mr. Webb reviewed proposed phasing of the project, and the terms of the grant agreement. He noted
the funds may go directly to the Authority, or be funneled through TxDOT. Director Stein clarified that the grant,
combined with the Authority’s matching funds, is for the construction of Phase 1. Mr. Webb discussed the
possible availability of additional funds from the BUILD program through HGAC for Phase 2. He stated that he is
meeting with the City to discuss possible funding through TxDOT.

MHRA/minutes 12-12-19



Approve J|C Work Authorization T-0523A No. 1

Ms. Williford reviewed with the Board the J|C Work Authorization T-0523A No. 1, which includes the
administration of the BUILD grant through FHWA for Phase | of the project. Upon motion by Director Stein,
seconded by Director Hale-Harris, and after full discussion, the Board voted unanimously to approve J|C Work
Authorization T-0523A No. 1.

Approve J|C Work Authorization T-0523A No. 2

Ms. Williford reviewed with the Board the J|C Work Authorization T-0523A No. 2, which includes
preparation of a preliminary engineering report for both phases of the project and obtaining an approved Record
of Decisions and Actions Items (“RDAI") from the City Public Works Department. She advised the WA also
includes environmental site assessment, geotechnical investigation, Concepts for Trees mitigation, among other
things. Upon motion by Director Stein, seconded by Director Hale-Harris, and after full discussion, the Board
voted unanimously to approve J|C Work Authorization T-0523A No. 2.

Approve TGC Work Authorization T-0523A No. 1

Mr. Webb reviewed with the Board the TGC Work Authorization T-0523A No. 1, which includes the re-
engagement of HGAC for Phase 2 of the project. Upon motion by Director Stein, seconded by Director Hale-
Harris, and after full discussion, the Board voted unanimously to approve TGC Work Authorization T-0523A No.
1.

Approve TGC Work Authorization T-0523A No. 2

Mr. Webb reviewed with the Board the TGC Work Authorization T-0523A No. 2, which includes grant
compliance and administration through the design phase. Upon motion by Director Stein, seconded by Director
Hale-Harris, and after full discussion, the Board voted unanimously to approve TGC Work Authorization T-052A
No. 2.

Heights Boulevard Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety Improvements

Ms. Hennings updated the Board on the Heights Boulevard Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety
Improvements [CIP Project T-0527]. She advised that comments from the City on 60% plans are being
addressed, and 90% plans are expected to be submitted to the City for review within the week.

North Canal Project

Ms. Weesner updated the Board on the North Canal Project [CIP Project T-0525]. She advised that the
City is writing RFQs, and that she has requested details of Zone benefits. She estimated that the design phase
will take approximately one year. She also noted that the Zone will be a part of the review and decision team.

Approve related contract administration items

Director Brown advised that a workshop will be scheduled to review all projects and potential projects.
He also noted that the Projects Committee had received, reviewed, and approved all pay estimates.

ADOPT FY 2020 BUDGET [CONFIRM COH APPROVAL]

The Board then considered the adoption of the FY 2020 budget. Ms. Weesner noted that the City has
approved the budget.

Upon motion by Director Hale-Harris, seconded by Director Manriquez, and after full discussion, the
Board voted unanimously to adopt the FY 2020 budget, and confirm City approval.

Ms. Weesner noted that the grant funding is sooner than previously anticipated; therefore, a budget
amendment may be needed to reflect design costs in this year's budget.

3
MHRA/minutes 12-12-19



EINANCIAL MATTERS

Receive Finance Committee Report

Director Hale-Harris next reported to the Board on financial matters.

Receive Financial Report Summary

Ms. Robinson-Bacon reviewed with the Board the Financial Report Summary, including account and
fund activity statements.

Authorize payment of invoices

Director Hale-Harris reviewed with the Board the invoices submitted for payment. She noted the
Finance Committee has reviewed and approved all invoices. Following discussion of the invoices, a motion was
made by Secretary Brown, seconded by Director Pierre, and approved unanimously by the Board to authorize
the payment of all invoices.

ATTORNEY'S REPORT

Ms. Davis advised that she is working with the Authority’s Financial Advisor on due diligence for future
financing.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Chair Lents announced that an executive session for the Board would not be necessary.

Public comments

The Board then took public comments.

CONSIDER, CONFIRM, OR RATIFY ACTIONS OF THE AUTHORITY

The next item on the agenda was to consider, confirm, or ratify actions of the Authority. Ms. Davis
advised that no action by the Board is necessary.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

MHRA/minutes 12-12-19



There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned.

Secretary
Memorial-Heights Redevelopment Authority

MHRA/minutes 12-12-19



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER FIVE, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS

DECEMBER 12, 2019
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Reinvestment Zone Number Five, City of Houston, Texas,

convened in regular session, open to the public, at 50 Waugh Drive, Houston, Texas 77007, on the 12" day of
December, 2019, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of the Board, to-wit:

Ann Lents Chair
Alejandro Colom Vice Chair
Janice Hale-Harris Secretary
Bryan Brown Director
Christopher David Manriquez  Director
Dr. Robert Stein Director
Marvin Pierre Director

and all of said persons were present, except Director Colom, thus constituting a quorum.

Also present at the meeting were Sherry Weesner of SMW Principle Solutions, Inc., President of the
Authority; Erin Williford and Kristen Hennings of Jones|Carter (“J|C"); Jim Webb and Monisha Khurana of The
Goodman Corporation (“TGC"); Cassandra Robinson-Bacon of The Morton Accounting Services (“TMAS"); Pat
Rutledge from Friends of Woodland Park (“FWP”); Emily Guyre of Houston Heights Association; Mario Castillo
on behalf of Bill Baldwin, an area realtor; Letha Allen; Linda Trevino of METRO; and Laura C. Davis and Susan
Demiany of Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker Kahn LLP (“SKLaw”).

DETERMINE QUORUM; CALL TO ORDER

Chair Lents noted that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order.

APPROVE MINUTES

The Board considered approving the minutes of the October 24, 2019, meeting. Upon motion by
Director Brown, seconded by Director Stein, and after full discussion, the Board unanimously voted to approve
the minutes of the October 24, 2019, meeting as presented.

ADOPT FY 2020 BUDGET [CONFIRM COH APPROVAL]

The Board then considered the adoption of the FY 2020 budget. Ms. Weesner noted that the City has
approved the budget.

Upon motion by Director Hale-Harris, seconded by Director Manriquez, and after full discussion, the
Board voted unanimously to adopt the FY 2020 budget, and confirm City approval.

Ms. Weesner noted that the grant funding is sooner than previously anticipated; therefore, a budget
amendment may be needed to reflect design costs in this year's budget.

CONSIDER, CONFIRM, OR RATIFY ACTIONS OF THE AUTHORITY

The next item on the agenda was to consider, confirm, or ratify the action of the Authority, as may be
necessary. The Board noted that no confirmation or ratification action was necessary.



There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned.

Secretary
Reinvestment Zone Number Five,
City of Houston, Texas



| Invoice Administration

| All invoices and requests for payment for the Memorial- Heights Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ

5 (MHRA) shall utilize the procedures detailed in this document. Invoices that are submitted
after the required dates shall be taken up the following month. Invoices that are not complete
shall be returned to the appropriate representative.

1. Contracts Supported by Work Authorizations

The Morton Accounting Services,Melissa-C-Merten,
melissacpa@themortonassociates.com ) with a copy to the MHRA Adeiristrater
President{Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.,
mbratiS@ematSherry@memorialheightstirzs.com ) no later than 5:00 PM on

the first Monday or the 5% of each month whichever is earlier.

| b. The Invoice shall identify the Work Authorization, the total budget authorized,
the amount previously invoiced, the current invoice, the remaining budget and
the current MWDBE Participation.

| c. Invoices that are supported by Work Authorizations shall also include or be
supported by documentation that details tasks completed during the period, the
percentage of project previously completed and the current completion
percentage.

d. Any allowable reimbursable expenses shall be supported by appropriate
documentation which shall be included in the package.

2. Consulting Contracts without Work Authorizations and supported by ongoing
Contracts

a. All invoices shall be submitted to the MHRA Bookkeeper (Melissa C. Morton CPA,
The Morton Accounting Services, Melissa £ Merton,
melissacpa@themortonassociates.com ) with a copy to the MHRA Adeiristrater
President{Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.,
mbratirzS@ematbeomSherry@memorialheightstirz5.com ) no later than 5:00

PM on the first Monday or the 57 of each month whichever is earlier.

| E.a.All invoices that are supported by an ongoing consulting eestractcontracts shall
include sufficient detail to support all charges. These invoices shall also include
or be supported by documentation that details tasks completed during the

a. All invoices shall be submitted to the MHRA Bookkeeper (Melissa C. Morton CPA,

10



d.b.Any allowable reimbursable expenses shall be supported by appropriate
documentation which shall be included in the package.

3. Construction Contracts

a. All construction invoices/pay applications/ construction change orders shall be
submitted to the appropriate Construction Management Firm for review and
approval.

b. The appropriate Construction Management Firm will review, verify and request
revision/correction or approve all construction invoices/pay applications/

construction change orders. The Construction Management FiremAll invoices shall
submit appropriate documentation be submitted to the Memorial Heights
Eedevelopment Authority/TIRZ 5 IMHRA]} Bookkeeper (Melissa C. Morton CPA, The

Morton Accounting Services, Melissa O Morton,
melissacpa@themortonassociates.com ) with a copy to the MHRA Administrator
President(Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.,

Sherryi@ memorialheightstirz5.com ) no later than 5:00 PM on the first Monday or
the 5% of each month whichever is earlier.

c. The invoice shall identify the total budeet authorized by category, the CIP number,
the amount previously invoiced, the current invoice, the remaining budeet and the
current MWDBE Participation. Invoices shall identify or be supported
documentation that identifies the percentage complete by catego

d. Any allowable reimbursable expenses shall be supported by appropriate

documentation which shall be included in the package.
tiez5@ il
4. Regular and Recurring Invoices

b.a.All invoices shall be submitted to the MHRA Bookkeeper [Melissa C. Morton CPA,
The Morton Accounting Services, melissacpa@themortonassociates.com) with a
copy to the MHRA President(Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.,
Sherryi@memeorialheightstirz5.com ) no later than 5:00 PM on the first Monday or

the 5 of each month whichever is earlier.

b. The administrator shall check that the services were ordered and used and confirm
the charges are within the standard charges published or on file and provide this
information to the appropriate committee.

11



1.

2.

3.

3

For months inwhich a Board Meeting is scheduled, the Finance Committee shall review
all invoices that do not involve engineering consulting or construction projects, and the
Projects Committee shall review all engineering consulting invoices and all construction
invoices/pay applications/change orders prior to the Board Meeting and make a
recommendation for approval or denial to the full Beardboard for each inveice.

Approval or denial shall be recorded by the Einanca Committea or Drojacte Committen,
as-applicableand in the Board Meeting minutes. Apprﬂved invoices shall be paid by the

MHRA Bookkeeper following Board apprevalApproval.

For months in which a Board Meeting is not scheduled, the Finance Committee shall
review all invoices that do not involve engineering consulting or construction projects
and record its recommendaticarecommendations for each invoice. -The Finance
Committee shall provide tethe MHRA AdministratorPresident (Sherry Weesner, SWMW
Principle Solutions, Inc.) its recommendations. —-The MHRBA AdminictratorPresident
[Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.) shall review the Finance Committee’s
recommendations and either (a) approve payment-cfsuchinvoices and cause the
MH-RA—BQQLGkEE—EEHQ—pFEpE#E—Q#d—FEJE—QS@—p@meHt or {h} den*.r pa'.rment Al Einance

MHMM#&L@M ren:n::-rl:l Df aII invoices pau:l 5ha|| be pre;ented to the fuII Board at
the next scheduled Board Meeting.

For months inwhich a Board Meeting is not scheduled, the Projects Committee shall
review all invoices for engineering consulting inveices-and allconstruction invelces /pay
applications/change ordersprojects and record its recommendationrecommendations
for each invoice. -The Projects Committee shall provide tothe MHRA
AdministratorPresident (Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.) its
recommendations. -The MHRA AdministratorPresident (Sherry Weesner, SMW
Principle Solutions, Inc.] shall review the BrojacteProject Committee’s
recommendations and either (a) approve payment-afsuchinvoices and cause the
MH&LE@Qkk@@p@M&p;@pﬂ@#@-@%pmmt or {h}den',r pa*,,rment All Projects

MHM%#&L@FA record Df aII invaices pau:l 5ha|| be premnted to the fuII Board at
the next scheduled Board Meeting.

Record Keeping

Copies of all documentation and recommendations shall be retained in compliance with the
MHRA document retention schedule and policies and in accordance with applicable law.

12



Authorized Signatories for Authority Accounts

Selection of Authorized Signatories

The Authority will have a least three [3) authorized signatories for the Authority's Operating
Account. The Board Chair shall nominate the authorized signatories and a list of the proposed
authorized signatories will be presented to the board for approval. After board approval the
MHRA Bookkeeper (Melissa C. Morton CPA, The Morton Accounting Services,
melissacpa@themortonassociates.com) will start the process with the bank to change/add the
new signatories. Any existing signatories will remain active until replaced.

Duties of Authorized Signatories

Authorized Signatory shall:
+  Confirm checks match unpaid bills report/ invoice
= Confirm appropriate committee or board approval
= Shall accomplish these duties with a minimum delay (24 hours maximum)

Payment Approval Administration

Physical Checks

For months where there is no board meeting scheduled, for physical checks, the MHRBA
President{Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.) or designee shall confirm all checks
match the unpaid bills reportfinvoice and the appropriate committee or board has approved of the
payment and shall arrange for 2 of the authorized signatories to sien each check.

For months where there is a board meeting scheduled, for physical checks, the MHRA Bookkeeper
{Melissa C. Morton CPA, The Morton Accounting Services,
melissacpa@themortonassociates.com) or designee shall confirm all checks mateh the unpaid bills

report/invoice and the board has approved of the payment and shall provide the checks at the
meetings for 2 of the authorized signatories to sign each check.

Electronic Funds Transfer {wire transfer or electronic check payment)

For months where there is no board meeting scheduled, the MHRA President (Sherry Weesner,
ShW Principle Solutions, Inc.) or designee shall confirm all payments match the unpaid hills
report/invoice and the appropriate committee or board has approved of the payment and shall

13



provide copies of this information via email to at least 2 of the authorized signatories. Each of the
signatories will email the MHRA President [Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.) and the
MHRA Bookkeeper [Melissa C. Morton CPA, The Morton Accounting Services,
melissacpa@themortonassociates.com) with confirmation that they have reviewed the unpaid
hills and approvals and approve payment of the invoices.

For months where there is a board meeting scheduled, for electronic funds transfer, the MHRA
Bookkeeper [Melissa C. Morton CPA, The Morton Accounting Services,
melissacpa@themortonassociates.comjor designee shall confirm all checks match the unpaid hills
report/invoice and the board has approved of the payment and 2 of the authorized signatories shall

both sign a copy of the unpaid bills report to confirm that they have reviewed the unpaid bills and
approvals and approve electronic payment of the invoices.

The MHRA Bookkeeper [Melissa C. Morton CPA, The Morton Accounting Services,
melissacpa@themortonassociates.comlor designee shall electronically transfer funds per the
accounting software or bank's standard electronic banking system.

Revisions to Financial Procedures

1. Ifnecessary, the BnanceFinancial Committee or Projects Committee, as applicable,
shall make recommendations to the Beardboard for process revisions to these

financial procedures. Revisions shall be incorperated upon Board approvalApproval.

2. The MHRA Administrator may make changes to the name and contact information
for the Bogkkeepericcountant and the Administrator listed in this procedure.

These Invoice Administration and Payment Procedures are effective as of Apsil 112017
February 27, 2020.

14



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AMENDED
INVOICE ADMINISTRATION AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

WHEREAS, the Memorial-Heights Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”) previously
adopted a Resolution Authorizing Invoice Administration and Payment Procedures (the “Resolution”)
which set forth the Authority’s administrative requirements for the submission of invoices and procedures
for the review and payment of invoices (the “Procedures™); and

WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to amend and replace such Procedures with Exhibit “A”,
attached hereto. Now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MEMORIAL-HEIGHTS
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY THAT:

Section 1: The attached Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and sets forth the Authority’s
Procedures for the review and payment of invoices.

Section 2: The Authority’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) hereby authorizes the President
of the Authority (the “President”) to approve and cause payment of invoices that are processed in

accordance with the Procedures. The President may be charged with other duties, from time to time, as
designated by the Board.

(EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS)

15



PASSED AND APPROVED this 27th day of February, 2020.

Vice Chair, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

16



EXHIBIT A

Invoice Administration

All invoices and requests for payment for the Memorial Heights Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 5
(MHRA) shall utilize the procedures detailed in this document. Invoices that are submitted after the
required dates shall be taken up the following month. Invoices that are not complete shall be returned
to the appropriate representative.

1. Contracts Supported by Work Authorizations

a. Allinvoices shall be submitted to the MHRA Bookkeeper (Melissa C. Morton CPA, The
Morton Accounting Services, melissacpa@themortonassociates.com ) with a copy to the
MHRA President (Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.,
Sherry@memorialheightstirz5.com ) no later than 5:00 PM on the first Monday or the
5t of each month whichever is earlier.

b. The Invoice shall identify the Work Authorization, the total budget authorized,
the amount previously invoiced, the current invoice, the remaining budget and
the current MWDBE Participation.

c. Invoices that are supported by Work Authorizations shall also include or be
supported by documentation that details tasks completed during the period, the
percentage of project previously completed and the current completion
percentage.

d. Any allowable reimbursable expenses shall be supported by appropriate
documentation which shall be included in the package.

2. Consulting Contracts without Work Authorizations and supported by ongoing
Contracts

a. Allinvoices shall be submitted to the MHRA Bookkeeper (Melissa C. Morton CPA, The
Morton Accounting Services, melissacpa@themortonassociates.com ) with a copy to the
MHRA President(Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.,
Sherry@memorialheightstirz5.com ) no later than 5:00 PM on the first Monday or the
5% of each month whichever is earlier.

a. Allinvoices that are supported by an ongoing consulting contracts shall include
sufficient detail to support all charges. These invoices shall also include or be
supported by documentation that details tasks completed during the period. Any
MWBE participation shall also be documented.

17


mailto:melissacpa@themortonassociates.com
mailto:Sherry@memorialheightstirz5.com
mailto:melissacpa@themortonassociates.com
mailto:Sherry@memorialheightstirz5.com

b.

Any allowable reimbursable expenses shall be supported by appropriate
documentation which shall be included in the package.

3. Construction Contracts

All construction invoices/pay applications/ construction change orders shall be
submitted to the appropriate Construction Management Firm for review and
approval.

The appropriate Construction Management Firm will review, verify and request
revision/correction or approve all construction invoices/pay applications/ construction
change orders. All invoices shall be submitted to the MHRA Bookkeeper (Melissa C.
Morton CPA, The Morton Accounting Services, melissacpa@themortonassociates.com )
with a copy to the MHRA President(Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.,
Sherry@memorialheightstirz5.com ) no later than 5:00 PM on the first Monday or the
5% of each month whichever is earlier.

The invoice shall identify the total budget authorized by category, the CIP
number, the amount previously invoiced, the current invoice, the remaining
budget and the current MWDBE Participation. Invoices shall identify or be
supported by documentation that identifies the percentage complete by
category.

Any allowable reimbursable expenses shall be supported by appropriate
documentation which shall be included in the package.

4. Regular and Recurring Invoices

a.

b.

All invoices shall be submitted to the MHRA Bookkeeper (Melissa C. Morton CPA, The
Morton Accounting Services, melissacpa@themortonassociates.com) with a copy to the
MHRA President (Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.,
Sherry@memorialheightstirz5.com ) no later than 5:00 PM on the first Monday or the
5% of each month whichever is earlier.

The President shall check that the services were ordered and used and confirm
the charges are within the standard charges published or on file and provide this
information to the appropriate committee.

18


mailto:melissacpa@themortonassociates.com
mailto:Sherry@memorialheightstirz5.com
mailto:melissacpa@themortonassociates.com
mailto:Sherry@memorialheightstirz5.com

Payment Procedures

1. For months in which a Board Meeting is scheduled, the Finance Committee shall
review all invoices that do not involve engineering consulting or construction
projects and the Projects Committee shall review all engineering consulting invoices
and all construction invoices/pay applications/change orders prior to the Board
Meeting and make a recommendation for approval or denial to the full board for
each invoice. Approval or denial shall be recorded in the Board Meeting minutes.
Approved invoices shall be paid by the MHRA Bookkeeper following Board Approval.

2. For months in which a Board Meeting is not scheduled, the Finance Committee shall
review all invoices that do not involve engineering consulting or construction
projects and record its recommendations for each invoice. The Finance Committee
shall provide the MHRA President (Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.)
its recommendations. The MHRA President (Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle
Solutions, Inc.) shall review the Finance Committee’s recommendations and either
(a) approve payment; or (b) deny payment. A record of all invoices paid shall be
presented to the full Board at the next scheduled Board Meeting.

3. For months in which a Board Meeting is not scheduled, the Projects Committee shall
review all invoices for engineering consulting and construction projects and record
its recommendations for each invoice. The Projects Committee shall provide the
MHRA President (Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.) its
recommendations. The MHRA President (Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions,
Inc.) shall review the Project Committee’s recommendations and either (a) approve
payment; or (b) deny payment. A record of all invoices paid shall be presented to
the full Board at the next scheduled Board Meeting.

Record Keeping

Copies of all documentation and recommendations shall be retained in compliance with the
MHRA document retention schedule and policies and in accordance with applicable law.

19



Authorized Signatories for Authority Accounts

Selection of Authorized Signatories

The Authority will have a least three (3) authorized signatories for the Authority’s Operating Account.
The Board Chair shall nominate the authorized signatories and a list of the proposed authorized
signatories will be presented to the board for approval. After board approval the MHRA Bookkeeper
(Melissa C. Morton CPA, The Morton Accounting Services, melissacpa@themortonassociates.com) will
start the process with the bank to change/add the new signatories. Any existing signatories will remain
active until replaced.

Duties of Authorized Signatories

Authorized Signatory shall:
e Confirm checks match unpaid bills report/ invoice
e Confirm appropriate committee or board approval
e Shall accomplish these duties with a minimum delay (24 hours maximum)

Payment Approval Administration
Physical Checks

For months where there is no board meeting scheduled, for physical checks, the MHRA President(Sherry
Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.) or designee shall confirm all checks match the unpaid bills
report/invoice and the appropriate committee or board has approved of the payment and shall arrange
for 2 of the authorized signatories to sign each check.

For months where there is a board meeting scheduled, for physical checks, the MHRA Bookkeeper
(Melissa C. Morton CPA, The Morton Accounting Services, melissacpa@themortonassociates.com) or
designee shall confirm all checks match the unpaid bills report/invoice and the board has approved of
the payment and shall provide the checks at the meetings for 2 of the authorized signatories to sign
each check.

Electronic Funds Transfer (wire transfer or electronic check payment)

For months where there is no board meeting scheduled, the MHRA President (Sherry Weesner, SMW
Principle Solutions, Inc.) or designee shall confirm all payments match the unpaid bills report/invoice
and the appropriate committee or board has approved of the payment and shall provide copies of this
information via email to at least 2 of the authorized signatories. Each of the signatories will email the
MHRA President (Sherry Weesner, SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.) and the MHRA Bookkeeper (Melissa C.
Morton CPA, The Morton Accounting Services, melissacpa@themortonassociates.com) with
confirmation that they have reviewed the unpaid bills and approvals and approve payment of the
invoices.

20


mailto:melissacpa@themortonassociates.com
mailto:melissacpa@themortonassociates.com
mailto:melissacpa@themortonassociates.com

For months where there is a board meeting scheduled, for electronic funds transfer, the MHRA
Bookkeeper (Melissa C. Morton CPA, The Morton Accounting Services,
melissacpa@themortonassociates.com)or designee shall confirm all checks match the unpaid bills
report/invoice and the board has approved of the payment and 2 of the authorized signatories shall
both sign a copy of the unpaid bills report to confirm that they have reviewed the unpaid bills and
approvals and approve electronic payment of the invoices.

The MHRA Bookkeeper (Melissa C. Morton CPA, The Morton Accounting Services,
melissacpa@themortonassociates.com)or designee shall electronically transfer funds per the accounting
software or bank’s standard electronic banking system.

Revisions to Financial Procedures

1. If necessary, the Financial Committee or Projects Committee, as applicable, shall
make recommendations to the board for process revisions to these financial
procedures. Revisions shall be incorporated upon Board Approval.

2. The MHRA President may make changes to the name and contact information
for the Accountant and the President listed in this procedure.

These Invoice Administration and Payment Procedures are effective as of February 27, 2020.

21


mailto:melissacpa@themortonassociates.com
mailto:melissacpa@themortonassociates.com

PUBLIC WORKSHOP SUMMARY
BY

MEMORIAL-HEIGHTS REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
JANUARY 27, 2020

Memorial-Heights Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”) conducted a public workshop at 1980 Post
Oak Boulevard, Suite 1380, Houston, Texas, on the 27t day of January, 2020, and the following persons were
present:

Ann Lents, Chair of the Authority; Bryan Brown, Director of the Authority; Sherry Weesner of SMW
Principle Solutions, Inc., President of the Authority; Erin Williford and Kristen Hennings of Jones|Carter; Jim
Webb and Monisha Khurana of The Goodman Corporation; Laura Davis and Susan Demiany of Sanford Kuhl
Hagan Kugle Parker Kahn, LLC; and other attendees as reflected on the public sign-in sheet (as filed in the
Authority’s records). No quorum of the Board of Directors of the Authority was present.

RECEIVE COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no comments or questions from the public at this time.

DISCUSS SHEPHERD/DURHAM AND SELECTED CROSS STREETS

Ms. Weesner provided an update on the Shepherd/Durham and Selected Cross Streets Reconstruction
Project [CIP Project T-0523A]. Ms. Williford updated the Board on the status of preparation of plans, noting
preparation of 30% plans for submission to the City of Houston for review is ongoing. Ms. Weesner discussed
various bike lane configurations currently being considered.

DISCUSS POTENTIAL PROJECTS AND CIP

Ms. Williford and Ms. Weesner discussed potential projects (a copy of which is on file in the Authority’s
records) and answered questions from the public. Ms. Weesner advised that the list is comprehensive, and will
most likely change over time. Chair Lents also noted the benefits of taking on small projects.

UPDATE ON HOUSTON AVENUE AND WHITE OAK DRIVE INTERSECTION

Ms. Williford updated the Board on the Houston Avenue/White Oak Drive Intersection project [CIP T-
0520], advising that the project is substantially complete.

UPDATE ON HEIGHTS BOULEVARD BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS

Ms. Williford discussed improvements planned for the proposed Heights Boulevard Bicycle and
Pedestrian Safety Improvements project [CIP Project T-0527].

MHRA/minutes 02-27-19

22



0z07/81/Z

xspx'a30pdp 133/01d §1°20°0207

"BUlULE[d MdH YHM DA

‘MalAal MdH J04 YO Uelq Hugns e .
424 40 |exwgns o3 Joud MdH YHM 1931 e *191EMBISEAN PUR ‘U9IBAA ‘WI0IS MdH YUM IDIA ®
"SUOI1BIO|DJ SSNISIP OF JUI0IBIUBD YHUM 199N @ *s3431| uenisapad pue 193435 SSNISIP 0} ALID YUM 1D e
‘M3IA2] D 19NPUAOD pue YO Jo Yeap 339jdwo) e 'SJUNO3J J)jJe1) P33IaNpUol) e
‘sisAjeue pTSYLY WAILU0D 0] Wi01S MdH Yim 393N e 111130 ajeald WOy UOIIBWIO)UI PBAISISI pUB P3ISanbay e
'$3ZIS WJUOD O] J91BMIISEM PUB 1918 MdH UUM I ® *(¥2Q) nodsy 1dasuo) udisaq Sulsedaid ueSag e
‘sdoysyJom |euclyippe pjoH e 's3)1q pue ‘Usues) ‘sueliisopad ‘Alljiqow uo sdoysyiom pjaH e Yid| ZEYM
‘elep azAjeue pue sjunod oyeJy 813|dwo) e *SJURYNSUO3GNS JO p3aXydIy e | udis3Qg 3AIPY VEZSO-L wey.ng pue pJaydsys| -y£zs0o-1
‘pJeme JurJS M3IA3] 03 933UWWOY $123[01d YIM 1BIA| @ UOI1RUIPJO0) JUBID|  THYM
“uoljeJisiuiwpe jueld jo poddns psnujjuo) e ‘paeme Juels ssnasip 03 MdH YUM 1SN e Sujuueld VEZS0-L weying pue psaydays| -vezso-1
‘papaau se
‘san)|iqisuodsal pue adods au(WLIS}ap 0 QD4DH PuUe LOAXL YIm a3y @
pue adods aulwJalap 03 HOD YIiMm UOIIBUIPI00D 3NUIUCD) @D40H pue ‘1040XL ‘HOD Y1IM UOIIeUIpIOad BNUNRUOI 0} 13N @ Sujuue|d SZS0-1 193l0.d |eue) yuoN 2
"MdH 01 sue|d %06 HWgNs pue SJUaWWOD SSBIPPY e ‘MdH WO} STUSWWOI PIAISIY e
‘led] DA 8uoje sjusuanoldw| Ayajes pue
‘IBAL [ SUoje pue ‘iesl I ‘syuawsnoldw) A1ajes |led] [NIA 18 pJeadjnog s1ySiaH ‘Alajes
1e pJeaajnog s1ydiaH ‘pieasinog s1ydisH Suoje syuswanoidu) 3|2A21g 73 UeLIS3pad pleasinog s1yBiaH 104 uBIsap panunuod e syuswanoidw) Arajes
A134e5 3)3A01g pue URlIISAPa4 JOj USISBP pue SISAjEUE ANUIIUC) e ‘DI 38 S3Y8iaH Joy4 sisAjeue panuiuo) e | udisag aAndY 1275S0-1 pleAsjnog siysiaH %
‘020Z/E/T dLN WoJ) awi119eJ1u0d Aep-06 e 'S|4Y PUB S[EJIIWIGNS PIMIIASY e
'S4y pue sjeriwqns Suiuiewst Aue ssaJppy e '1039e43U03 Yum s3ullaaw ssalSoud Apjsam-1q paionpuc) e
*J010BIIU0D YUMm s3ullaaw ssas3oid Ajpasm-Ig anuuo) e JusWadeuew UOIIINIISUOI PUR UOIIBAIDSTO P(3l) PapIADLd e | UORINIISUO)
‘Juswaeuew UOiINIISUOD pUR UDIIBAJISGO P31} BNUIIUOCD) e ‘BuiaalAl uonanIsuc)-aid plaH e MDY 1250-1 34Bd 19321Y1 3117 9
9£250-1 SAlIQ Weying
= = a13|dwo) /YETSO-L pue 3AuQ pJaydays s/v
- - 213|/dwo) - SIU3WNI0(Q pu3 U0 €
*suof3aadsul jeul4 pue Yy1QL 3|NPayIs e °
'91eWI1S3 [eul) 3Y3 JO UO[ID|dWOD U0 JYY YIM YIOM e ‘CT# uonedddy Aeq papaiuigns pue pazijeul{ e | UOI1INIISUOD uo(193513a1u| 3eQ
‘[eudis 03 Jamod Jusuewlad Uo JUI04IAIUID YHM IO e 13mod Jusuewiad Jo) JUI04I3IUD) YIM HIOM Panujjuo) e APy 0250-1 21YM /2NUBAY UOISNOH z
‘SjusIaAcIdWl 3|9A31G pue uelisspad jo Suiddew ajepdn) e "SIUBWIA0IAWI 3|2AJIq puUe uelIsapad Jo deul paledald e
‘papaau se ‘delp A pue 3s)| 393fold ulejulely ® ‘0202/82/T Uo pieog yum doysydopy diJ papusny e
's393(04d dJ7 3A130€ ||e Jo) aseqeieqd 3AMIN HOD 3lepdn e 'sy08foud 4|7 jo dey Alols pasedald e| ssauSaid u) - uol1e3|Nsu0) |Bl3UaD T
YIuoy IXaN 3y3 ul paredidnuy YoM Builealy pieog 6T0Z ‘2T 12qwialaq 3auls paradwo) ydom sniexs L.MN“:“U awepN pafouq M

-

¥3iLayvaoisaNar

0702 ‘8T Adenuga{ — a1epdn 109fo.d

G "ON Zy11/A1ioyiny Jusawdo|arapay S1ySIaH [eLIOWIN

23



JONES|CARTER

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY RATES
Effective January 2020 - Subject to Annual Revision in January 2021

ENGINEERING PERSONNEL

DESIGNERS/DRAFTING PERSONNEL

Design Engineer | $100
Design Engineer Il $120
Professional Engineer | $140
Professional Engineer il $160
Professional Engineer Ill $185
Professional Engineer IV $215
Professional Engineer V $230
Practice Leader $250
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING PERSONNEL

Electrical Design Engineer | $110
Electrical Design Engineer Il $130
Electrical Professional Engineer | $155
Electrical Professional Engineer I $170
Electrical Professional Engineer Il $190
Electrical Professional Engineer IV $225
Electrical Professional Engineer V $240
CONSTRUCTION PERSONNEL (Includes Mileage)

Project Representative | S 60
Project Representative || S 85
Project Representative IlI $105
Project Representative | — Treatment Facilities $ 85
Project Representative Il — Treatment Facilities $110
Project Representative Iil — Treatment Facilities $135
Construction Manager | $100
Construction Manager |l $120
Construction Manager |l $140
Construction Manager 1V $160
Construction Manager V $185
SOFTWARE ENGINEER

Software Engineer | $120
Software Engineer Il $185
Software Engineer 11l $230
PLANNING PERSONNEL

Planner | S 90
Planner Il $120
Planner Ili $150

CAD Operator | $ 55
CAD Operator Il $ 75
CAD Operator Il S 95
Designer | $ 95
Designer Il $115
Designer IlI $135
GIS Operator | S 80
GIS Operator Il $105
GIS Operator lil $140
SURVEYING PERSONNEL

1-Person Field Crew $125
2-Person Field Crew $170
3-Person Field Crew $205
4-Person Field Crew $235
Scanner Equipment $100
Survey Technician | S 65
Survey Technician Il S 80
Survey Technician (Il $100
Project Surveyor | S 75
Project Surveyor || S 85
Project Surveyor Il $100
Project Surveyor IV $115
Chief of Survey Crews $100
Registered Professional Land Surveyor $160
Survey Manager $185
OFFICE PERSONNEL

Engineer’s Assistant | $ 60
Engineer’s Assistant || $75
Engineer’s Assistant [l S 85
Admin | $ 55
Admin Il $ 75
Admin Ul $100
Assistant Controller/ Chief Accountant $110
Corporate/Project Acct. | S 75
Corporate/Project Acct. Il $ 90

* The 2020 rates have not changed from the 2019 rates.

JC2020 Standard revised 1/6/20

24



JONES|CARTER

SCHEDULE OF REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
Effective January 2020
Subject to Annual Revision in January 2021

1. Reproduction performed in office

Size Black & White __Color
8% x 11 (single-sided) $0.05/page S .50/page
8% x 11 (double-sided) $0.15/page S 1.00/page
8% x 14 $0.15/page S .75/page
11x 17 $0.20/page S 1.00/page
Large Document Prints/Plots Black & White Color
Bond $0.20/sq ft $ 1.00/sq ft
Photographic Bond $4.00/sq ft $ 5.00/sq ft
Mylar (4 mil) $2.00/sq ft N/A

Aerial Backgrounds

All sizes $5.00/sheet (plus above sq. ft. cost)
2, Transportation (mileage): Standard IRS mileage rate in effect
3. Subcontracts and all other outside expenses and fees: Cost, plus 10% service charge
4, Surveying Expenses

a. Crew Rates: Includes time charged portal to portal and the first 120 miles of
transportation and standard survey equipment
b. Special Rental Equipment: Cost, plus 10%

c. Stakes: Cost, plus 10% service charge when an excessive number of wooden stakes or
any special stakes are required

d. Iron Rods and Pipes: Cost, plus 10%

e. All-Terrain Vehicle (ATV): $150/day

f. Overnight Stays: $190/night

g. Overtime Rates: Jobs requiring work on weekends or holidays billed at 1.5 times the
standard rate

h. Sales Tax: To be paid on boundary-related services.

Deliveries, abstracting services, outside reproduction costs, and other reimbursable
expenses charged at cost, plus 10%

Final 2020
Standard

* The 2020 rates have not changed from the 2019 rates.

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

25



EXHIBIT “D”

Form of Work Authorization

AMENDMENT 8
TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 1
FOR
MEMORIAL-HEIGHTS REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

This Work Authorization authorizes consultant services to be performed by JONES |
CARTER (the “Consultant”) pursuant to the Agreement for Program Management and
Engineering Services (the “Agreement”) between the Consulftant and Memorial-Heights
Redevelopment Authority (the “Owner”). Unless otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms
used in this Work Authorization are defined in the Agreement.

This Work Authorization consists of the following:

1.0 BASIC CONSULTANT SERVICES — Non-CIP: Time and materials basis
Upon execution of this Work Authorization, the Consultant will provide the
following Basic Consultant Services. The activities included and the estimated
hours for each are as follows:

a. General On-Call — Board meetings, committee meetings, workshops,
unplanned project efforts, CIP coordination, etc.
b. 20" Street — Design and reconstruction efforts for this corridor are being

led by the COH. The team will meet with the COH as necessary and keep
track of the status of the ongoing discussion and future plans for this
corridor.

c. COH Database — Update and maintain records for all projects in COH
MWDBE database.

50 PAYMENT
Payment to the Consultant for the Services rendered in connection with the
Project shall be made in accordance with Exhibit “B” to the Agreement and shall
not exceed $241,978.

Work Authorization 1: $51,598
Amendment 1: $27,380
Amendment 2: $28,000
Amendment 3: $10,000
Amendment 4: $25,000
Amendment 5: $25,000
Amendment 6: $25,000
Amendment 7: $25,000
Amendment 8: $25,000

26



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Work Authorization as of

.20 .

OWNER:
MEMORIAL-HEIGHTS REDEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

By:
Name:
Title:

CONSULTANT:
JONES | CARTER

By:
Name: Martin Murdock
Title: Vice President

ATTEST:
JONES | CARTER

By:
Name: Kristen Hennings
Title: Senior Project Manager

27



| Jo | abeyq

s _ S3DIAUISJISYE L0
1e303qnS SINOH =il
_Fo.omum 0005 0STS Z Taunf Juipelsyaam p
“?o.mwmm 000S 59g$ 4 T v Aeyy Supeisyasp o
_Fc.emﬂm 000S [0STS (4 g |udy Suruels¥aEm q
00°05 S9£$ 4 1 ZYepy Supelsesm e
aseqeieq 3gGMIN HOD 33epdn z
00°'0S SLS T Lz Anp Buiels yaam 2
00'0S 0£9% T 4 oz Anf Buipels yaam A
00'0S DE8S 14 z €T Anf Suluels ya3ap %
00°0$ DLeTS T T T 2 T 1 9 AINf Buels yaem M
000$ eSS [2 z 67 aun( BUILIEIS Y2aM, A
00'0$ 0E9S 4 T Zzaun( 3upesaam N
00'0S DESS 4 t ST aung Suipels y3am 1
{lbose6s 00'0$ c€6$ 1 z @ T gaunf Sunielsy3am s
__bo.mnmw 00°0$ ST8S z T k4 T aunf Buipeisyasm 4
{lbo-oess 0003 0£8S v z Sz Aen SuEls Jaam b
libo'og9s 00'0$ ng9s T z 8T AEW BUILIEIS o3, @
|lboosots 0003 lo60'TS T v 1 z 1T Aew Bupeis yaam o
llo-0gss 0005 Inags z T T 7 Aeyy Buipiels yaam, |
{lborogz't$ 0005 09z'T$ v v 77 U0y Builiels yaop W
llboroegs 00'0$ loeas z z 07 Jsdy Sunels ¥oom, |
[lo060°T$ 00°0$ [060°TS T v T z €1 Iudy Suiels Yoo, %
lloo"agss 00'0S loogs z Z T 9 udy Buipiels yoam |
lboosz'ts 00'0$ 097’1 [2 v 0F PIely BURIeIs oo |
lloo"c00'T$ 00°0$ 0007 T T 3 €7 Y21E Bupes eI 4
(l0osas$ 00°0$ 506$ 1 v Z 9T UoIEW SULIels N93Mm 8
___co.omwm 000$ ESS 4 @ 6 Yauepy Suieis yasm |}
_oo.mww.ﬁm 00'0$ 598°TS T 14 4 4 T i Z Yaen BuipeIS YW @
0'SET'TS 00'0$ SET'TS T € v pz Aeruqad Suiels yaam  p
loo'oess 00°0$ oess 3 z £T Arerugad Buieis yoam >
To.ooo..nw 00'0% 000'TS z z T 0T Alerugad Suipels ¥aam g
To.cwa.um 00'0S 190°'TS t 14 T € Alenugag Juinels yaam e
1|EJ-UQ [eJRURYD
SIJIAYIS JISYE
I = 33LyvalsaNnor
193png (%0T +1509) |
1e0L 'suoyqng || “suedqns | ‘suodqns |e101-qns aaneld ﬁ
0z0z/1%/T
00-T000-092pT "ON alosd / ddo 8 Juswpuawy THYM S "ON ZYIL /Auoyiny Juawdo|aAapay sIY3ISH-[elIOWIAl

NAMOANV3Y4d 334 DNIUIINIONT

28



/\

THE MDRTEIN AEE:EILINTINE SERVICES

Memorial Heights Redevelopment Authority
Monthly Financial Report Summary
February Board Meeting
Thursday, February 27, 2020

At the beginning of December, the Memorial Heights Redevelopment Authority (TIRZ #5)
beginning Operating Fund Balance was $13,744,415. TIRZ #5 received a total of $35,432,
mainly from money market interest. During the period, TIRZ #5 processed $279,660 in
disbursements during the period. 77% of the disbursements related to disbursements to
Jones & Carter for CIP Projects (574,742 and $79,257) and RAC Industries for CIP (510,046
and $51,630). The ending balance as of month end January 31, 2020 was $13,500,187.

The invoices pending approval total $197,104. See attached “Unpaid Bills Detail” Report
on page 3. A transfer of $200,000 is required from the Money Market Account to the
Operating account to cover outstanding invoices.

There was $309,741 spent for Capital Projects for the period. The project that utilized the

majority of the funding was T-0523 Shepherd/Durham Reconstruction (5119,323). See
attached “Capital Improvement Projects” Report on page 4.

29



Memorial Heights Redevelopment Authority
General Operating Fund
As of January 31, 2020

BEGINNING BALANCE

REVENUE

Prosperity Money Market Interest
Prosperity Money Market Interest
TexPool Investment
TexPool Investment

Total Revenue

DISBURSEMENTS

2599
2547
2540
2543
2541
2542
2544
2545
2546
2384
2385
2386
2387
2388

Goodman Corporation

The Morton Accounting Services

Jones & Carter
Goodman Corporation
SK Law

SMW Principle Solution
RAC Industries Inc

SK Law

SMW Principle Solution
Goodman Corporation
Jones & Carter Inc
RAC Industries Inc

SK Law

SMW Principle Solution

Total Disbursements

ENDING BALANCE

LOCATION OF ASSETS
Prosperity Operating
Prosperity Money Market
TexPool Investment

Total Account Balance

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

General Operating Fund

8,960.15
3,222.30
8,431.50
14,818.40

1,903.50
4,222.54
74,742.26
6,139.70
8,661.90
10,592.60
10,046.49
1,216.22
10,071.48
4,650.00
79,257.28
51,630.37
6,475.53
10,050.02

Monthly Interest
Monthly Interest
Monthly Interest
Monthly Interest

13,744,414.59

35,432.35

Engineering Consultant
Accounting

Capital Projects
Engineering Consultant
Legal Services

Admin Consulting
Capital Projects

Legal Services

Admin Consulting
Engineering Consultant
Capital Projects
Capital Projects

Legal Services

Admin Consulting

279,659.89

$

13,500,187.05

January 31, 2020

Balance

22,356.86
1,336,418.90
12,141,411.29

$

13,500,187.05

Page 2

30



Memorial Heights Redevelopment Authority

Unpaid Bills Detail
As of February 19, 2020

Type Date Num Memo Due Date Open Balance
Goodman Corporation

Bill 01/31/2020 1-2020-17 MRA108.2 Project - Project Initiation and Design Phase 02/10/2020 5,950.00

Bill 01/31/2020 1-2020-16 MRA108.1 Project - PH Il Funding Coordination 02/10/2020 1,600.00
Total Goodman Corporation 7,550.00
Jones & Carter Inc.

Bill 01/31/2020 00298604 Work Order 1 - Through January 31,2020 02/10/2020 3,683.75

Bill 01/31/2020 00298605 T0523A Shepherd Durham Grant Coord - Through Janua...  02/10/2020 555.00

Bill 01/31/2020 00298606 T0523A Shepherd Durham Recon Proj - Through January...  02/10/2020 101,175.00

Bill 01/31/2020 00298607 Work Order 6 - Through January 31, 2020 final design 02/10/2020 17,648.75

Bill 01/31/2020 00298608 Work Order 7 - Through January 31, 2020 02/10/2020 2,770.00
Total Jones & Carter Inc. 125,832.50
Millis Equipment LLC

Bill 01/31/2020  Pay App 1 Little Thicket Park - Contract $392,654.75 02/10/2020 46,882.80
Total Millis Equipment LLC 46,882.80
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker Kahn

Bill 01/31/2020  20-1013 Admin/Meeting through January 2020 02/10/2020 851.25

Bill 01/31/2020  20-1014 General Legal services through January 2020 02/10/2020 2,251.20

Bill 01/31/2020  20-1015 General Legal services through January 2020 02/10/2020 118.75

Bill 01/31/2020  20-1016 Legal services through January 2020 02/10/2020 156.25
Total Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker Kahn 3,377.45
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc.

Bill 01/31/2020 1251 January Consulting 2020 02/10/2020 10,314.24
Total SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. 10,314.24
The Morton Accounting Services

Bill 01/31/2020 2014 December and January CPA Services 02/10/2020 2,547.07
Total The Morton Accounting Services 2,547.07
Urban Land Institute

Bill 01/28/2020 3135820 Sherry Weesner Membership #1149574 02/07/2020 600.00
Total Urban Land Institute 600.00

TOTAL 197,104.06
Page 3

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

31



4:05 PM

02/19/20
Accrual Basis

Memorial Heights Redevelopment Authority

Capital Improvement Projects
December 2019 through January 2020

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount
Capital Improvement Plan
T-0520 Houston Ave & White Oak
Bill 12/20/2019 Pay Requ...  RAC Industries, Inc. Pay Request 12 - $1,145,903 Contract (w/... 51,630.37
Bill 12/31/2019 1244 SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. December 2019 Consulting 525.00
Bill 12/31/2019 00297445 Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 2 - Through December 27, 20... 13,936.14
Bill 01/31/2020 1251 SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. January 2020 Consulting 37.50
Total T-0520 Houston Ave & White Oak 66,129.01
T-0521 Little Thicket Park Impr
Bill 12/01/2019 00295583 Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 6 - Through November 29, 20... 1,952.06
Bill 12/31/2019 1244 SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. December 2019 Consulting 300.00
Bill 12/31/2019 19-3226 Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker ...  Legal services through Dec 31, 2019 271.25
Bill 12/31/2019 00297446 Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 6 - Through December 27, 20... 4,603.57
Bill 01/31/2020 Pay App 1 Millis Equipment LLC Little Thicket Park - Contract $392,654.75 46,882.80
Bill 01/31/2020 00298607 Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 6 - Through January 31, 2020... 17,648.75
Bill 01/31/2020 1251 SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. January 2020 Consulting 487.50
Total T-0521 Little Thicket Park Impr 72,145.93
T-0523 Shepherd/Durham Reconstr
Bill 12/31/2019 1244 SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. T-0523A December 2019 Consulting 1,200.00
Bill 12/31/2019 19-3227 Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker ... Legal services through Dec 31, 2019 1,5623.75
Bill 12/31/2019 12-2019-12  Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $85,000 4,250.00
Bill 12/31/2019 12-2019-11 Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $20,000 400.00
Bill 01/31/2020 00298605 Jones & Carter Inc. T0523A Shepherd Durham Grant Coord - ... 555.00
Bill 01/31/2020 00298606 Jones & Carter Inc. T0523A Shepherd Durham Recon Proj - T... 101,175.00
Bill 01/31/2020 1251 SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. T-0523A January 2020 Consulting 2,512.50
Bill 01/31/2020 20-1016 Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker ... Legal services through January 2020 156.25
Bill 01/31/2020 1-2020-17 Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $85,000 5,950.00
Bill 01/31/2020 1-2020-16 Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $20,000 1,600.00
Total T-0523 Shepherd/Durham Reconstr 119,322.50
T-0525 Reconst Bridges White Oa
Bill 12/01/2019 00295585 Jones & Carter Inc. Reconstruct Bridges over White Oak 2,758.75
Bill 12/31/2019 00297448 Jones & Carter Inc. Reconstruct Bridges over White Oak 12.20
Bill 01/31/2020 1251 SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. January 2020 Consulting 75.00
Total T-0525 Reconst Bridges White Oa 2,845.95
T-0527 Heights Blvd Pedestrian
Bill 12/01/2019 00295584 Jones & Carter Inc. Heights Blvd Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety ... 31,951.26
Bill 12/31/2019 00297447 Jones & Carter Inc. Heights Blvd Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety ... 14,388.83
Bill 01/31/2020 00298608 Jones & Carter Inc. Heights Blvd Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety ... 2,770.00
Bill 01/31/2020 1251 SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. January 2020 Consulting 187.50
Total T-0527 Heights Blvd Pedestrian 49,297.59
Total Capital Improvement Plan 309,740.98
TOTAL 309,740.98
Page 4

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

32



Memorial Heights Redevelopment Authority

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
7 Months Ended Jan 31, 2020

Jan 31, 2020 Jan 31, 2020 . o
Actual Budget Variance % of Budget
Revenue
Interest Income $ 132,409.62 $ 25,000.00 $ 107,409.62 529.64 %
Revenue - Other 430,000.00 405,000.00 25,000.00 106.17 %
Tax Increment - City 0.00 6,570,767.00 (6,570,767.00) 0.00 %
Tax Increment Interest 0.00 4,210.00 (4,210.00) 0.00 %
Total Revenue 562,409.62 7,004,977.00 (6,442,567.38) 8.03 %
Capital Improvement Plan
T-0520 Houston Ave & White Oak 84,109.52 300,000.00 (215,890.48) 28.04 %
T-0521 Little Thicket Park Impr 102,947.18 770,000.00 (667,052.82) 13.37 %
T-0523 Shepherd/Durham Reconstr 143,335.20 0.00 143,335.20
T-0525 Reconst Bridges White Oa 7,885.95 1,000,000.00 (992,114.05) 0.79 %
T-0527 Heights Blvd Pedestrian 107,082.35 730,000.00 (622,917.65) 14.67 %
Total Capital Improvement Plan 445,360.20 2,800,000.00 (2,354,639.80) 15.91 %
Gross Profit 117,049.42 4,204,977.00 (4,087,927.58) 2.78 %
Operating Expenses
Developer Reimbursement 262,564.60 606,907.00 (344,342.40) 43.26 %
Municipal Services 0.00 160,652.00 (160,652.00) 0.00 %
Program and Project Consultants
Engineering Consultants 26,943.22 75,000.00 (48,056.78) 35.92 %
Legal Expense 22,461.45 100,000.00 (77,538.55) 22.46 %
Planning Consultants 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.00 %
TIRZ Administration & Overhead 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accounting 12,334.21 20,000.00 (7,665.79) 61.67 %
Administration 55,063.83 100,000.00 (44,936.17) 55.06 %
Auditing 5,500.00 9,000.00 (3,500.00) 61.11 %
Insurance 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.00 %
Office Expenses 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 0.00 %
Tax Consultant 2,100.00 25,000.00 (22,900.00) 8.40 %
Total Operating Expenses 386,967.31 1,157,559.00 (770,591.69) 33.43 %
Net Income (Loss) (269,917.89) 3,047,418.00 (3,317,335.89) (8.86)%
No assurance is provided on these financial statements Page 5

33



Current Assets
Prosperity - Money Market
Prosperity Bank - Operating
TexPool Investment
Prepaid Insurance

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Retainage Payable

Total Current Liabilities
Stockholders' Equity

Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Stockholders' Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Memorial Heights Redevelopment Authority

BALANCE SHEET
Jan 31, 2020 and 2019

Assets
2020 2019 Variance %
$ 1,336,41890 $ 3,335152.75 $ (1,998,733.85) (59.93)%
22,356.86 48,972.46 (26,615.60) (54.35)%
12,141,411.29 6,005,876.94 6,135,534.35 102.16 %
723.98 723.98 0.00 0.00 %
13,500,911.03 9,390,726.13 4,110,184.90 43.77 %
$ 13,500,911.03 $ 9,390,726.13 $ 4,110,184.90 43.77 %
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
2020 2019 Variance %
$ 197,104.06 $ 180,538.24 $ 16,565.82 9.18 %
61,952.73 0.00 61,952.73 0.00 %
259,056.79 180,538.24 78,518.55 43.49 %
13,511,772.13 10,405,972.37 3,105,799.76 29.85 %
(269,917.89) (1,195,784.48) 925,866.59 (77.43)%
13,241,854.24 9,210,187.89 4,031,666.35 43.77 %
$ 13,500,911.03 $ 9,390,726.13 $ 4,110,184.90 43.77 %
Page 6

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

34



Accrual Basis

Memorial Heights Redevelopment Authority

Profit & Loss Detail

July 2019 through January 2020

Type

Date

Num Adj

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Interest Income
Deposit  07/31/2019
Deposit  07/31/2019
Deposit  08/31/2019
Deposit  08/31/2019
Deposit  09/30/2019
Deposit  09/30/2019
Deposit  10/31/2019
Deposit  10/31/2019
Deposit  11/30/2019
Deposit  11/30/2019
Deposit  12/31/2019
Deposit  12/31/2019
Deposit  01/31/2020
Deposit  01/31/2020

Total Interest Income

Revenue - Other
Deposit  11/18/2019
Deposit  11/28/2019

Total Revenue - Other
Total Income

Cost of Goods Sold
Capital Improvement Plan
T-0520 Houston Ave & White Oak

Bill 07/31/2019 19-2636
Bill 07/31/2019 1206
Bill 07/31/2019 00288770
Bill 08/31/2019 1215
Bill 09/30/2019 19-2922
Bill 09/30/2019 1218
Bill 10/31/2019 19-2995
Bill 10/31/2019 1227
Bill 11/30/2019 Pay Request 11
Bill 11/30/2019 1231
Bill 12/20/2019 Pay Request 12
Bill 12/31/2019 1244
Bill 12/31/2019 00297445
Bill 01/31/2020 1251
Total T-0520 Houston Ave & White Oak
T-0521 Little Thicket Park Impr
Bill 07/31/2019 19-2637
Bill 07/31/2019 1206
Bill 07/31/2019 00288772
Bill 08/31/2019 00290389
Bill 09/30/2019 00292108
Bill 09/30/2019 1218
Bill 10/31/2019 00294327
Bill 10/31/2019 19-2997
Bill 10/31/2019 1227
Bill 11/30/2019 19-3096
Bill 11/30/2019 1231
Bill 12/01/2019 00295583
Bill 12/31/2019 1244
Bill 12/31/2019 19-3226
Bill 12/31/2019 00297446
Bill 01/31/2020 Pay App 1
Bill 01/31/2020 00298607
Bill 01/31/2020 1251

Total T-0521 Little Thicket Park Impr

Name Memo Amount
Interest 7,793.70
Interest 12,299.91
Interest 9,599.93
Interest 11,208.91
Interest 9,038.61
Interest 10,827.53
Interest 9,902.80
Interest 9,221.96
Interest 8,660.44
Interest 8,423.48
Interest 8,960.15
Interest 8,431.50
Interest 3,222.30
Interest 14,818.40
132,409.62
City of Houston Cust. Little Thicket Payment 405,000.00
Council Member Bike Lane Contribution - Houston A... 25,000.00
430,000.00
562,409.62
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Legal services through July 31, 2019 456.25
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. July 2019 Consulting 1,350.00
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 2 - Through July 31, 2019 921.52
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. August 2019 Consulting 825.00
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Legal services through Sept 30, 2019 243.75
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. September 2019 Consulting 1,012.50
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Legal services through Oct 30, 2019 162.50
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. October 2019 Consulting 2,475.00
RAC Industries, Inc. Pay Request 11 - $1,145,903 Contract (w/CO - 1,23... 10,046.49
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. November 2019 Consulting 487.50
RAC Industries, Inc. Pay Request 12 - $1,145,903 Contract (w/CO - 1,29... 51,630.37
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. December 2019 Consulting 525.00
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 2 - Through December 27, 2019 13,936.14
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. January 2020 Consulting 37.50
84,109.52
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Legal services through July 31, 2019 37.50
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. July 2019 Consulting 37.50
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 6 - Through July 31, 2019 final design 3,241.25
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 6 - Through Aug 31, 2019 final design 4,255.00
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 6 - Through Sept 31, 2019 final design 3,452.50
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. September 2019 Consulting 562.50
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 6 - Through Oct 25, 2019 final design 18,252.50
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Legal services through Oct 31, 2019 431.25
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. October 2019 Consulting 337.50
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Legal services through Nov 30, 2019 81.25
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. November 2019 Consulting 112.50
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 6 - Through November 29, 2019 final de... 1,952.06
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. December 2019 Consulting 300.00
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Legal services through Dec 31, 2019 271.25
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 6 - Through December 27, 2019 final de... 4,603.57
Millis Equipment LLC Little Thicket Park - Contract $392,654.75 46,882.80
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 6 - Through January 31, 2020 final design 17,648.75
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. January 2020 Consulting 487.50
102,947.18

Page 7

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

35



Memorial Heights Redevelopment Authority
Profit & Loss Detail
July 2019 through January 2020

Accrual Basis

Type Date Num Adj
T-0523 Shepherd/Durham Reconstr
Bill 07/31/2019 7-2019-16
Bill 07/31/2019 7-2019-15
Bill 07/31/2019 7-2019-15
Bill 07/31/2019 19-2638
Bill 07/31/2019 1206
Bill 07/31/2019 00288771
Bill 08/31/2019 1215
Bill 08/31/2019 8-2019-43
Bill 08/31/2019 8-2019-42
Bill 09/30/2019 9-2019-31
Bill 09/30/2019 1218
Bill 10/31/2019 10-2019-9
Bill 10/31/2019 10-2019-8
Bill 10/31/2019 1227
Bill 11/30/2019 11-2019-16
Bill 11/30/2019 11-2019-21
Bill 11/30/2019 1231
Bill 12/31/2019 1244
Bill 12/31/2019 19-3227
Bill 12/31/2019 12-2019-12
Bill 12/31/2019 12-2019-11
Bill 01/31/2020 00298605
Bill 01/31/2020 00298606
Bill 01/31/2020 1251
Bill 01/31/2020 20-1016
Bill 01/31/2020 1-2020-17
Bill 01/31/2020 1-2020-16

Total T-0523 Shepherd/Durham Reconstr
T-0525 Reconst Bridges White Oa

Bill 08/31/2019 1215
Bill 09/30/2019 1218
Bill 10/31/2019 00294329
Bill 10/31/2019 1227
Bill 11/30/2019 1231
Bill 12/01/2019 00295585
Bill 12/31/2019 00297448
Bill 01/31/2020 1251

Total T-0525 Reconst Bridges White Oa
T-0527 Heights Blvd Pedestrian

Bill 07/31/2019 00288773
Bill 08/31/2019 1215
Bill 08/31/2019 00290390
Bill 09/30/2019 00292109
Bill 09/30/2019 1218
Bill 10/31/2019 00294328
Bill 10/31/2019 1227
Bill 11/30/2019 1231
Bill 12/01/2019 00295584
Bill 12/31/2019 00297447
Bill 01/31/2020 00298608
Bill 01/31/2020 1251

Total T-0527 Heights Blvd Pedestrian
Total Capital Improvement Plan
Total COGS

Gross Profit

Expense
Developer Reimbursement
Bill 09/30/2019 Reimbursement

Total Developer Reimbursement

Name Memo Amount

Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $12,500 216.00
Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $17,500 2,625.00
Goodman Corporation Task 2 - $11,250 1,687.50
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Legal services through July 31, 2019 356.25
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. T-0523A July 2019 Consulting 2,925.00
Jones & Carter Inc. WOS5 - Shepherd Dr 6th to 610 - Through July 31, 2... 1,336.25
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. T-0523A August 2019 Consulting 525.00
Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $12,500 486.00
Goodman Corporation Task 2 - $11,250 1,687.50
Goodman Corporation Task 2 - $11,250 1,687.50
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. T-0523A September 2019 Consulting 225.00
Goodman Corporation Task 2 - $11,250 1,687.50
Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $12,500 216.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. T-0523A October 2019 Consulting 0.00
Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $12,500 5,5677.20
Goodman Corporation Task 2 - $11,250 562.50
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. T-0523A November 2019 Consulting 2,212.50
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. T-0523A December 2019 Consulting 1,200.00
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Legal services through Dec 31, 2019 1,523.75
Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $85,000 4,250.00
Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $20,000 400.00
Jones & Carter Inc. T0523A Shepherd Durham Grant Coord - Through J... 555.00
Jones & Carter Inc. T0523A Shepherd Durham Recon Proj - Through Ja... 101,175.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. T-0523A January 2020 Consulting 2,512.50
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Legal services through January 2020 156.25
Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $85,000 5,950.00
Goodman Corporation Task 1 - $20,000 1,600.00
143,335.20

SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. August 2019 Consulting - T0525 412.50
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. September 2019 Consulting - T0525 487.50
Jones & Carter Inc. Reconstruct Bridges over White Oak 1,252.50
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. October 2019 Consulting - T0525 1,500.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. November 2019 Consulting 1,387.50
Jones & Carter Inc. Reconstruct Bridges over White Oak 2,758.75
Jones & Carter Inc. Reconstruct Bridges over White Oak 12.20
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. January 2020 Consulting 75.00
7,885.95

Jones & Carter Inc. Heights Blvd Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety Impr. 215.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. August 2019 Consulting 187.50
Jones & Carter Inc. Heights Blvd Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety Impr. 2,070.00
Jones & Carter Inc. Heights Blvd Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety Impr. 1,685.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. September 2019 Consulting 300.00
Jones & Carter Inc. Heights Blvd Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety Impr. 53,177.26
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. October 2019 Consulting 75.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. November 2019 Consulting 75.00
Jones & Carter Inc. Heights Blvd Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety Impr. 31,951.26
Jones & Carter Inc. Heights Blvd Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety Impr. 14,388.83
Jones & Carter Inc. Heights Blvd Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety Impr. 2,770.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. January 2020 Consulting 187.50
107,082.35

445,360.20

445,360.20

117,049.42

Sovereign Regent Square LLC Developer Reimbursement 2019 (Construction Cost) 262,564.60
262,564.60

Page 8

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

36



Accrual Basis

Memorial Heights Redevelopment Authority

Profit & Loss Detail
July 2019 through January 2020

Type Date Num

Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill

Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill

Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill

Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill
Bill

Bill

Program and Project Consultants

Engineering Consultants

07/31/2019 00288769
08/31/2019 00290388
09/30/2019 00292107
10/31/2019 00294326
12/01/2019 00295582
12/31/2019 00297444
01/31/2020 00298604

Total Engineering Consultants

Legal Expense

07/31/2019 19-2635
07/31/2019 19-2639
08/31/2019 19-2743
09/30/2019 19-2921
10/31/2019 19-2994
10/31/2019 19-2996
11/30/2019 19-3094
11/30/2019 19-3095
12/31/2019 19-3224
12/31/2019 19-3225
12/31/2019 12-3228
01/31/2020 20-1014
01/31/2020 20-1015

Total Legal Expense

Total Program and Project Consultants

TIRZ Administration & Overhead
Accounting
07/31/2019 1918
08/31/2019 1937
09/30/2019 1944
11/30/2019 1957
01/31/2020 2014

Total Accounting

Administration
07/31/2019 19-2634
07/31/2019 1206
07/31/2019 1206
08/31/2019 1215
08/31/2019 1215
09/30/2019 19-2920
09/30/2019 1218
09/30/2019 1218
10/31/2019 19-2993
10/31/2019 1227
10/31/2019 1227
11/30/2019 1231
11/30/2019 1231
12/31/2019 1244
12/31/2019 1244
12/31/2019 19-3223
01/28/2020 3135820
01/31/2020 1251
01/31/2020 1251
01/31/2020 20-1013

Total Administration

Auditing

09/11/2019 2019 Audit

Total Auditing

Name Memo Amount

Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 1 - Through July 31, 2019 3,615.00
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 1 - Through August 30, 2019 1,815.00
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 1 - Through September 27, 2019 6,115.00
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 1 - Through October 25, 2019 2,060.00
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 1 - Through November 29, 2019 1,265.00
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 1 - Through December 27, 2019 8,389.47
Jones & Carter Inc. Work Order 1 - Through January 31,2020 3,683.75
26,943.22

Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... General Legal services through July 2019 2,932.58
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker...  Allen Pkwy/Marston 37.50
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... General Legal services through August 2019 1,320.49
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... General Legal services through September 2019 4,906.03
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... General Legal services through October 2019 5,365.65
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Regents Square GID 837.50
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... General Legal services through November 2019 983.84
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Regents Square GID 151.13
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... General Legal services through December 2019 3,338.03
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Regents Square GID 125.00
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Allen Pkwy/Marston 93.75
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... General Legal services through January 2020 2,251.20
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Regents Square GID 118.75
22,461.45

49,404.67

The Morton Accounting Services July 2019 CPA Services 3,057.30
The Morton Accounting Services August 2019 CPA Services 1,257.30
The Morton Accounting Services September 2019 CPA Services 1,250.00
The Morton Accounting Services October and November 2019 CPA Services 4,222.54
The Morton Accounting Services December and January CPA Services 2,547.07
12,334.21

Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Admin/Meeting through July 31, 2019 230.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. July 2019 Consulting 5,687.50
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. July 2019 Expenses 57.62
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. August 2019 Consulting 8,050.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. August 2019 Expenses 104.93
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Admin/Meeting through Sept 30, 2019 1,995.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. September 2019 Consulting 7,412.50
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. September 2019 Expenses 45.44
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... ~ Admin/Meeting through Oct 30, 2019 1,865.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. October 2019 Consulting 5,612.50
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. October 2019 Expenses 592.60
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. November 2019 Consulting 5,725.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. November 2019 Expenses 71.48
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. December 2019 Consulting 7,975.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. December 2019 Expenses 50.02
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Admin/Meeting through Dec 31, 2019 1,123.75
Urban Land Institute Sherry Weesner Membership #1149574 600.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. January 2020 Consulting 6,700.00
SMW Principle Solutions, Inc. January 2020 Expenses 314.24
Sanford Kuhl Hagan Kugle Parker... Admin/Meeting through January 2020 851.25
55,063.83

McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot ... 2019 Audit Final 5,500.00
5,500.00

Page 9

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

37



Memorial Heights Redevelopment Authority
Profit & Loss Detail

Accrual Basis July 2019 through January 2020
Type Date Num ﬂ Name Memo Amount
Tax Consultant
Bill 07/01/2019 54184 Equi Tax Inc. July - June 2020 Tax Consulting 2,100.00
Total Tax Consultant 2,100.00
Total TIRZ Administration & Overhead 74,998.04
Total Expense 386,967.31
Net Ordinary Income -269,917.89
Net Income -269,917.89
No assurance is provided on these financial statements Page 10

38



TIRZ 5

2019 Certified Value Increment Report
based on HCAD Values as of January 2020

2019 2019 2019 2019 ESTIMATED GROSS LEVY WITH
CERTIFIED CERTIFIED BASE YEAR INCREMENT | TAXRATES TAXINCREMENT COLLECTION
VALUE TAXABLE VALUE /$100 LEVY RATE @ 97%
Original Area 1997 541,558,221
JUR 583 City 511,970,502 26,633,950 485,336,552 0.567920 2,756,323.35 2,673,633.65
Annexed Area 2007 31,016,128
JUR 935 City 29,632,566 0 29,632,566 0.567920 168,289.27 163,240.59
Annexed Area | 2008** 164,625,942
JUR 307 City 164,298,599 41,173,587 123,125,012 0.567920 699,251.57 678,274.02
Annexed Area 2009 591,450
JUR 309 City 591,450 0 591,450 0.567920 3,358.96 3,258.19
Annexed Area 2015 1,678,247,093
JUR 816 City 1,573,674,034 945,064,142 628,609,892 0.567920 3,570,001.30 3,462,901.26
Total 2,416,038,834
City 2,280,167,151 1,012,871,679 1,267,295,472 0.567920 7,197,224.44 6,981,307.71
**JUR 307 - signed a Restated Development Agreement effective June 1, 2016
HISD does not participate in the TIRZ after 2016.
Harris County does not participate in the TIRZ.
Base Year for JUR 935, an Annexed Area, is $0.
JUR 309, an Annexed Area, contains a prorated portion of The Legacy at Memorial Apartments.
JUR 816, Newly Annexed for tax year 2015 \

1ofl

February 2020

prepared by: Equi-Tax Inc.

39

281.444.4866



	Cover Page 02-27-20
	Table of Contents
	00 - AGENDA2
	MHRA 02-27-2020
	01a - MINUTES 12-12-19 MHRA
	DETERMINE QUORUM; CALL TO ORDER

	01b - MINUTES 12-12-19 TIRZ5
	__________________________________
	Secretary
	Reinvestment Zone Number Five,
	City of Houston, Texas

	04a1 - Invoice Administration and Payment Procedures Redline
	04a2 - Draft Resolution - Invoice Administration and Payment Procedures 2-27-2020
	04b - Project Workshop Meeting Notes 01-27-20
	05a - JC Project Update - Rate Schedule
	05a.i - JC WA 1, Amendment No. 8
	06b -  Financial Statements Jan  2020
	06d - TIRZ 5 2019 Tax Increment Report




